United Nations |
ECONOMIC

AND

SOCIAL COUNCIL

" Nations Unies

CONSEIL
- ECONOMIQUE 17 une 1949 ,
ET SOCIAL ~ ORIGINAL: ENGLISH - |

UNRESTRICTED

E/0N.4 /SR 128

CONTENTS:

- Chairmen:

Rapporteur:

Members:

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS

Fifth Session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-EIGHTH MEETING

'Held at Lake Success, New York,
en Wednesday, 15 June 1949, at 11 a.m.

Draft international covenant on human -rights: e&: tlcle 23
E/CN L4/296, E/CN.4/82/4dd.10/Rev.1) (discussion contlnued)

Mrs. F, D. ROOSEVELT

Mr, C. MALIK

Mr, SHANN
Mr, CHA
Mr, M, SOERENSEN

" Mr. O, IOUTFI -

Mr, R, CASSIN
Mr, GARCIA BAUER

 Mrs. MEHTA
- Mr, ENTEZAM

Uhlted States of Amerlcav
TLebanon

Australia "
China
Denmark
Bgypt
France
Guatemala
Indis

TIran

Any corrections of this record should bé_submitted in writing,

in either of the working languages (English or French), and within

two working days, to Mr. E, Delavenay, Director, Official Records

Division, Room F-852, Lake Success.

Corrections should be accompanied

by or incorpofated in a letter, on'headed notepaper, bearing the

appropriate symbol number and enclosed in an envelope marked "Urgent".

Correctlopﬁ SANDS. d@alt Wlth more speedily by the services concerned .

nineographed c

JUN 20 194¢

UNHED NAWONgjg
Anaanrs,

h

4
5
]

Efiﬁeiegﬁmioﬁm Hadd e zood enough also to incorporate them in a
?§y of lthe record, (l



E/CI\T 4/srR 128

Page 2
Members : (Continued) ‘ ‘
‘ Mr. AQUINO o Philippines

Mr. KOVALENKO Ukrainian Soviet Soclallst Bepubllc
Mr, PAVLOV Union of Soviet Socialist Republics
Miss M, BOWIE United Kingdom |
Mr, J, MORA Urugday
Mf. J. VILFAN ~ Yugoslavia

Consultants from non-governmental orgenizapions:

-Oategbry.A:‘ )
Miss SENDER ' Atiorican Federation of Labor
Miss STUART " World Federation of Trade Unions
Category B: ‘ '
' | Mr, PERLZWEIG : . World Jewish Congress
Mrs. G, ATETA . Cathollc International Union for
Soclal Service
Miss C, SCHAEFER : Internatlonal Uhlon of Cathollc
‘ . Women's ILeagues ‘
Mr. STEINER Commission of the Churches on
o ' ‘ International Affairs
Secretafiat: o .
I Mr. FELIER ' Legal Department ‘
Mr, HUMPHREY - Representative of the Secretary—
: ‘ General . ‘
Miss KITCHEN = = Secretary of the Commission

~/ORAFT INTERNATIONAL -



B/CN,U/SR 128
; ’ Page 3
DRAFT INTERNATIONAT COVENANT ON HUMAN RIGHTS: ARTICIE 23 (E/CN.4/296,
E/CN.4/82/A3d.10/Rev.1) (discussion continued)

The CHAIRMAN announced that only consecutive interpretation

services would be available at that meeting. 7

Mr, PAVIOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) drew attention
to the fact that the Secretariat, while knowing that the Trusteeship
Coumcil and the Atomic Energy Commission had meetings scheduled for
that morning, had previously promised that simultaneous Interpretation
would be available for the Commission on Human Rights., = In view of the
short time remaining at the Commission's disposal that was most impprtant,
gince consecutive interpretation took three times as long as simultaneous
and constituted a considerable hindrance to the Commission's work,

At Geneva he had been told that it was not always possible to service
three meetings with simultanecus interpretation, but he vas emazed that
that should also be the case at Headquarters. |

He pointed out that his delegation was most anxious to present and
discuss proposed additioﬁal articles dealing with such important subjects
as the right to work, the right to leisure, the right to social security ‘
and the right to free education, He had the impression that technical
obstacles, such as the lack of simultaneous interpretation, arose most
frequently whenever his delegation wished to expedite the work in order
to have time to discuss importanf proposals, The Commission should
insist on simultaneous interpretation for the afternoon's meeting and

for subsequent meetings.

The CHATRMAN stated that every effort would be made to provide
gimultaneous interpretatibn‘for the afternoon meeting and pointed out
that the problem was purely a budgetary one since it cost more to provide
the additional tesms of simultaneous interpreters necessary to service.
all the meetings. She rejected the USSR representative’s imputation"
that the delay was in any way intentional.

She appealed to representatives to speak as briefly as possible

in order to expedite the Commission's work.,

Mr, FEILER



"E/CN,b /SR 128
Pége l;/ ‘
Mr, FELIER (Legsl Department) said he had been asked to

analyze article 23 and refer to precedents in inited Nations. procedure.
The original drafting committee text for article 23 (B/CN.4/296) provided

for the system of accesslon to the draft covenant; the United States
amendment (E/ON.h/296) provided both for the system of accession and
. for the system of signature followed by ratifilcation.

Originally in internatlonal instruments the system of signature
had been followed and that htid. later been supplemented by the aysten
of accesslon. In League of Nations and United Nations practice the system
P geﬁerally adopted had been that of accegslon. In the case of accesslon
| no previous signature was necessary -~ the State merely deposited an

instrument of accession.

Quoting specific examples, Mr, Feller sald thgt the General
Convention on Privileges énd Inmunities of the United Nationg provided
golely for the gystem of accession. In other cases, both signature and
accesgion mlght be used, For =xample, the Protocol on Narcotic Drugs
wag open elther for signature or for acceptance by the depogit of a
formal instrument (acceptance, in that cage, being the same as accession);

- the Convention on Freedom of Information was open for eignature and
for ratification by Stétes in accordance with thelr constitutional ‘
practices, and was also open for accession; the Convention on Genocide
differed glightly from the other two in thet it was open for signature

| for a certain period of time, after which it‘might be ratified by aﬁ
ingtrument of accession, ‘ |

‘He pointed out that legally there was no difference between
glgnature and accesslon or acceptance of a oonvention.but that‘custom
varisd because certain States felt that the ceremony of signature had
a gymbollic value. The simplest procedure was that of accegsion. It was
for the Commission to decide as a matter of policy whether it wished
merely the gimply procedure of accesgsion, or both accession and signaturs

- ag suggested in the United States amendment, #As a drafting amehdment to

the United States amendment he suggested that the flrst two paragraphs
might be combined to read "This Covenant shall be open for signature

n

or accession,,..", which was the formula used in the Protocol on Narcotic

Drugs.

With regard to the question of which States might becoms parties to
the Covenant he pointed out that the original text admitted Members of the
United Nation, States parties to the Statute of the International Court of

‘/Justice and



‘ o © E/ow.b/sR 128
‘ Page 5

Justice and any other State declared eligible by the General Assembly,
vhereas the United States amendment provided that all States might acceds.
No United Netions multilateral conventlon had so far been declared open |
‘for acceasion by all States; such conventions hed merely given the ‘
General Asgewbly or the Hconomic and Social Council the optlon of
deciding whether non-menber Sté,tes might become parties to them. In
the case of the Protocol on Narcotic Drugs the General Assembly had
declded that all non-member States might ratify it.

The CHAIRMAN reﬁinded the Commission that, in the case of
the Conventlon on the Gathering end International Transmission of Néws,
the Third Ocmmittee, and later the General Assembly, had voted in favour
of the syateni of slgnature and ratification follovfed by accession,
although the basic document had provided omly for &ccessibn. That wag
significant since it 1mplied that the sysbtenm of signature had been felt
to have advantages over the other. She accepted Mr. Feller!s draftihg

amendment.

Mr. SOERENSEN (Denmark) thanked Mr. Feller for his statement.

The Danish delegation would have preferred the procedux‘e adopte‘d‘in
connexion with the Convention on Genoclde, but since there was no proposal
to that effect before the Commission, 1t would be willingb accept the
United States proposal with the change suggested by the Secretariat,

With regard to the question of which States were to be allowed
to adhere to the Covenant, he consldered that the ﬁrecedent of limlting
acceptance to States Members of the United Nations and non-merber States
approved by the General Agsembly should be clogely followed, '

He recalled that the Commission had before 1t the United States
amendment to the effect that the Covenant should enter Into force after. . .
_ ratification by fifteen States, and the French proposal (E/CN.4/82/add.1/
Rev.Ll) , 8tipulating that the Covenant should only come into force ”aa‘ soon‘4
as two-thirds of the Members of the United Nations, including at least
two permanent Membérs of the Security Council” had deposited thelr
instruments of accession, In vlew of the lmportance of the Covemant, =
he believed that a large mumber of ratifications ghould be secured befor‘e,"’

-

/1t came



E/CN,4/SR 128
Pége 6/

it camé into force. He therefore tended to support the French proposal
but congidered that a vote on the matter should be taken, He would
however be prepared to accept the United States proposal, 1f the number
‘of ratificationg was raised from fifteen to twenty or twenty-five,

The CHATRMAN, speaking in her capacity as representative of
the United States, sald that her delegation would not presé for keeping
the number of requisite ratifications at fifteen, It had been suggested
" in the first place merely as a number small enough to permit the early

entry into force of the Covenant.

Mr, PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said, in
connexlon with the Secreteriatis analysis of procedures for the acceptance
of international conventions, that he believed an incorrect statement had
been made W;th regard to the 1948 Protocol on Narcotic Drugs. The |
articles of ‘the Protocol d1d not make acceptance open to all States. He
quoted article 5 of the Protocol which provided that only such non-member
States as were invited to do so by the Economic and Social Council should

be allowed to sign.

Mr, FELIER (Legal Department) regretted that the‘represen;
tative of the USSR had misunderstood his statement, He had mentioned
the 1948 Protocol on Narcotic Drugs as en exemple of an occasglon on which
~ all States had been invited by the General Assembly to accept an

‘international convention., That invitation was not made in the Protocol

itself. Further, General Agsembly Resolution 211 (III) also referred to
‘the terms of General Asgembly Resolution 54 (I) which advised the Secretary-
General that no such invitation should be sent to Spain. '

Mr, MALIK (Lebanon) s&ild thet article 23 presented three
_ problems:' first, it must be decided what procedurg should be adopted
| for implementing the Covenent. The representafive of the United States
of America had wentioned the discussions in the.Third Committee with
regard to the Convention on the gathering and transmission of
nevs.  After lengthy debate, the Commlttee had decided

e o o o /%o adopt



E/CN.L/SR 128
Page T
to adbpt the three successive stages of signature, ratification and.
acceptance,” He was in favour of a simllar procedure‘in respect of the'
Covenant. - | |

Secondly, it must be decided what number of ratifications by
States should determine thé Covenant's entry‘into force. The
United States had suggested a tentetive minimum of fifteen, Demmerk was
in favour of twenty or twenty-five, and France proposed ratifications
by two-thirds of the States Members of the United Nations, including
two permanent Members of the Security Council, He was unable to
support any of those proposals. Ratification by two-thirds of the
Members of the United Nations in particular would postpone the entry
into force of the Covenant for far too long. He would prefer it to
be posgsible for the Covenant to come intc force between any number of
States, no matter how few. States which were the first to sign and
ratify the Covenant were presumably anxious to put it into effect
inside their own territories, and it should be made possiblé for them
to do so at once. There was no need. to stipulate any number of '
ratifications before the entry‘into force of the Covenant, After
much discussion on the same topic in the Third Committee, in connexion
with the draft conventions on the international right of correction and
the transmigsion of news, the comparatival& low number of six had been
decided on a8 a compromise, He himgelf would prefer the Covenant
to be valid between any number of states, but in any case the number
should be as small as possible. He was particularly opposed to the
suggestion that the putting into effect of the Covenant should be
dependent on ratification by two permenent Members of the Security Councii.
The Covenant c&me within the sphere of the Economic and Sociél Council
‘and he feared lest such a gtipulation might be & surreptitious attempt
to import the veto into Economic and Social Councill affairs. The
emallest State in the United Nations was as much concerned vith the
fundamental human rights guaranteed by the Covehant as the permament
Menbers of the Security Council. The entry into force of the
Covenant on Human Rights should not therefore be governed by the
apﬁroval of the permgnent members of the Seourity'Couﬁcil, which
was involved pre-eminently in political matters, He urged therefore
that the number of ratifications governing the entry into force -of the
Covenant ghould elther not be stipulated, or else be as swall as
possible, and that no mention whatever should be made of the permanent

Members .of the Security Councill,

/Lastly,




/O 4 /5R 126

Page o
Tastly, there was the question of what States were to be allowed

to accede to The Covenanu, He was in sympathy both with the repreéentative
»f' the USSR and the representative of Demmerk in that respect. Although

in principle all States shouid be ehcouraged to sign an ingtrument which

weanscended political considerations, it might be advisable in practice to

~ follow the precedent of making acceptance by non-Member States dependent

upon the invitation of the General Assembly.

. Miss BOWIE (United Kingdom/ thought that, as far as possible, it
vas advisable for the same procedure to be followed in all United Nations
conventions, The. procedure already followed had been thoroughly discussed

in the Bconamic and Social Council and in the General Assembly and had been
- tested by expérience. It would therefore be wise to adopt, with slight draft-
ing changes, the United States pr0posal which was based on the procedure
adopted'for the draft Conventlon on the Gathering and International Trans-
migsion of News. Moreover, a solemn éeremony of signing would be most
fitting in the case under consideration.

In following the procedure laid down in articles 15, 16 énd 17 of

- the aboveﬂnentioned‘Oonvention, two questions, as the representative of
Iebanon had pointed out, would arise, firstly, regarding what States
non-Members of the United Nations would be eligible to sign and accede

to the Covenant. In her view, it would be betber to state, for political,

as well as obther reasons, that non-Member States required to be invited

by the General Assembly to accede to the Covenant,

Becondly, there was the gquestion regarding howymény signatures would
.be required before the Covenant could come into force., She disaéreed with
the Lebanese representative on that point, and noted that nothing would
mrevent a small number of States from implementingz the Covenant by . agreement
among themselves. In view of the importance of the document, however, a
considerable number of signatures should be required for its formal entry intc
force. | ‘
While inclined to support the United States proposal, she suggested

that no final decision should be taken at that juncture on the two proposals
which should be forwerded to Governments for camment; and that the Cbmm;ssion

gshould limit itself to comgidering their form only.

Mr, IOUTFL (Egypt) supported in the main the procedure of gcceptanCI
laid down 1n the United States proposal, with the amendment suggested
- by Mr, Feller. With regard to the guestion whether the Covenant
should be open to all States for signature, he felt that, while the

[principie of



E/ON.4/SR 128
Page O
principle of universality would have been most desirable in that
instance, the accepted United Nations brocedure requiring e General
Asgembly resolution which declared a noﬁ%Member Sfate eligible to
8ign, should be followed.

With regard to the question of entry into force, he suggested,
as a compromise, that the Covenant should be signed by thirty States
which would be equal to about half the membership of the United Nations.
In reply to the Lebanese representative's suggestion, he thought that

immediate entry into force might raige difficulties of implememtation.

Mr., GARCIA BAUER (Guatemala) supported the United States
propogal in general. He polnted out, however, that the drafting of
the first peragraph might present certain difficulties to countries ‘
like Cyrenaice which had attained independence, but the statehood of
which had not yet been recognized. He therefore preferred paragraph 1
of the original text in document E/800 which stated that the Covenant
would be open for acceseion to every State Member of the United Natidns
or party to the Statute of the Intermational Court of Justice ahd to
every other State declared eligible by resolution of the General Assembly;‘

He supported the Uﬁited States proposal that the Covenant should
coms into force as soon as fifteen States bhad acceded thereto, - A
larger number of signatures asg proposed by the French representative,
would delay its entry into force.

The French suggeation requifing acceptance by two permanent members
of‘the Security Council was not acceptable.

Since the 1948 Protocol on Narcotic Drugs had included a provieion
requiring the signature of certain States which produced narcotic
drugs, in the case of an ihternational covenant on humer rights the
principle of the SOVerelgn equallty of States set forth 1n.Artlcle 2,
paragreph 1, of the Charter should apply. ‘

. . Mr, PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Sogilalist Republics) asked for
clarification regarding‘the pdssibility of States hécoming parties
to the Statute of the International Court of Justlce without being
Members of the United Natidns, as implied in the origimal text of
article 23 to which the representative of Guatemala had referred.

Mr. FEILFR (Secretariat) explained that Switzerland wes
the only party to the Statute of the International Court of Justice

which was not & Member of the United Nations. The principallty of

/Liechtenstein




E/CN.L/sSR 128
Page L
Liechtengtein had submitted an application in that regard to the

Security Council which had not yet taken any action thereon.

Mr, ENTEZAM (Iran) supported the amended United States
proposal that the Covenaht ghould be open for accesgsion to all
States, With regard to the question of the re@uired number of
signatures, he endorsed the Egyptian proposal providing for thirty
. glgnatures firstly, because that would involve one half the membership
‘of the Unlted Nations, and gecondly, because by stating a gpecific
number, it would obviate the difficulties of calculation which might
arige in connexion with the French proposal,

With regard to the guestion of eligibility of States to accede to
the Covemant, he was in favour of setting nd limitation. The
Covenant should be open for accession to all States, whether or not
they were Members of the United Nations. Accession to the Covenant
vas not a privilege, but an undertaking which no State should be
prevented from maklng, Moreover, a provision reguiring the General
Assembly to declare a State eligible to accede to the Covenant might

put - the former into an embarrassing sltuation,

The meeting rose at 1 p.m,






